
From: Mixon, Kevin (DNR)
To: Melissa Schmit
Cc: Warzecha, Cynthia (DNR); Joyal, Lisa (DNR); Benage, Megan (DNR)
Subject: Elk Creek Solar
Date: Friday, March 15, 2019 11:10:56 AM
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Melissa:

Thanks for providing the letter and information concerning the proposed Elk Creek Solar project. 
Following are the MNDNR preliminary review comments.

1) The DNR Commercial Solar Siting Guidance document (attached) should be reviewed for our
standard recommendations.

2) The project site has a significant amount of surface drainage and farmed wetlands. 
Numerous other solar projects have run into major construction issues due to surface
runoff, water retention in farmed wetlands, and wet soils.  The conditions resulted in
construction delays (trenches filled with water, stuck vehicles, rutting, road mud, erosion),
wetland impacts, and increased costs.  Construction should be planned for
July/August/September in order to reduce the likelihood of construction problems. 
Establishing a cover crop several months ahead of construction can  stabilize soils ahead of
construction and minimize problems.

3) Our agency recommends that a diverse mix of native species be established to stabilize the
soil and provide long-term pollinator habitat.  See the attached guidance document. 

 
Thanks
 

Kevin Mixon
Regional Environmental Assessment Ecologist

Minnesota Department of Natural Resources
21371 Highway 15 South
New Ulm, MN 56073
Phone: 507-233-1255
Email: kevin.mixon@state.mn.us

































From: Horton, Becky (DNR)
To: Melissa Schmit
Cc: Warzecha, Cynthia (DNR)
Subject: Elk Creek Solar boundary update
Date: Friday, May 17, 2019 9:32:08 AM
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Hi Melissa,
 
Thank you for providing the DNR with the updated project boundary for the Elk Creek Solar
project in Rock County.
 
In addition to the preliminary review comments provided by Kevin Mixon on March 15 of this
year, I’d like to remind you to submit to DNR a Natural Heritage Information System (NHIS)
request once a final project boundary has been determined. Information on how to submit an
NHIS review request can be found on the MN DNR NHIS website (at the bottom of the
webpage).
 
Kevin retired earlier this spring and I’ve been helping review energy projects in his work area.
Please send me future documents related to this project.
 
Thanks,
 
Becky
 
Rebecca Horton
Region Environmental Assessment Ecologist | Ecological and Water Resources

Minnesota Department of Natural Resources
1200 Warner Road
St. Paul, MN 55404
Phone: 651-259-5755
Fax: 651-772-7977
Email: becky.horton@state.mn.us
mndnr.gov
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Brie Anderson

From: Horton, Becky (DNR) <becky.horton@state.mn.us>
Sent: Friday, June 14, 2019 11:22 AM
To: Melissa Schmit
Cc: Warzecha, Cynthia (DNR)
Subject: RE: Elk Creek Solar Seed Mixes
Attachments: Elk Creek Seed Mixes 2019-06-05.docx

Hi Melissa, 
 
Generally, the mixes looks good, we would recommend incorporating more early blooming plant species and 
more species overall for added diversity. However, we understand that you’ve been working with native 
prairie specialists to develop seed mixes that will have success at this particular site. The plan to incorporate a 
heavy grass mix to combat reed canary grass makes sense. 
 
We recommend taking a look at BWSR’s Habitat Friendly solar Program website which has a checklist for solar 
site pollinator habitat assessment. If you meet the requirements listed, the project could be added to the list 
of projects meeting requirements posted on the Board of Water and Soil Resources website and will be able to 
promote the array as a MN Board of Water and Soil Resources “Habitat Friendly Solar” project. The site 
assessment gives points for added species diversity and added seasons with blooming plants present, in 
addition to other components. 
 
Thanks, 
 
Becky 
 
Rebecca Horton 
Region Environmental Assessment Ecologist | Ecological and Water Resources 

Minnesota Department of Natural Resources 
1200 Warner Road 
St. Paul, MN 55404 
Phone: 651‐259‐5755 
Fax: 651‐772‐7977 
Email: becky.horton@state.mn.us 
mndnr.gov 
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From: Melissa Schmit [mailto:melissa@geronimoenergy.com]  
Sent: Wednesday, June 05, 2019 1:14 PM 
To: Horton, Becky (DNR) <becky.horton@state.mn.us> 
Subject: RE: Elk Creek Solar Seed Mixes 
 
Hi Becky, 
No problem, please see the attached mixes.  I also wanted to call out that the array mix has about an even split on 
number of seeds for grasses vs. forbs, while the wet mix is much heavier in favor of grasses. During the field visit, it was 
observed that the wet areas are heavily infested with reed canary grass and new influxes of reed canary grass seed will 
likely be an ongoing issue in the wet areas. Therefore, we have a very grass‐heavy wet mix to establish native vegetation 
that will resist the reed canary grass pressure as best as possible.  Please let me know if you have any other questions. 
 
Thanks, 
 

Melissa Schmit 
Permitting Manager  
Main: 952.988.9000 
Direct: 612.259.3095 

Geronimo Energy 
 

 
 

From: Horton, Becky (DNR) <becky.horton@state.mn.us>  
Sent: Tuesday, June 4, 2019 12:59 PM 
To: Melissa Schmit <melissa@geronimoenergy.com> 
Subject: RE: Elk Creek Solar Seed Mixes 
 

Hi Melissa, 
 
Can you provide information on seeds/square foot and ounce/acre? That’s what our guidance document uses, 
so it makes it easier to review. 
 
Thanks, 
 
Becky 
 

From: Melissa Schmit [mailto:melissa@geronimoenergy.com]  
Sent: Thursday, May 23, 2019 4:34 PM 
To: Horton, Becky (DNR) <becky.horton@state.mn.us> 
Cc: Warzecha, Cynthia (DNR) <cynthia.warzecha@state.mn.us> 
Subject: Elk Creek Solar Seed Mixes 
 
Hi Becky, 
As we move forward with development on our Elk Creek Solar Project in Rock County, we have worked with native 
prairie specialists to develop the attached proposed seed mixes for the site which included a site visit to evaluate what 
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native species are currently growing in the area. This project has several areas of hydric soil that will require a wet seed 
mix and we are proposing to use a mesic to dry‐mesic mix for all other areas of the site.  Our mixes are designed to be 
native and promote pollinator habitat and achieve our goals for operating the solar facility, promote pollinator habitat, 
establish stable ground cover successfully, reduce erosion, reduce runoff, and improve infiltration.  I have attached a 
copy of the project map for your reference.   
 
When you are able, can you please review the attached lists and let me know if the DNR concurs the mixes are 
acceptable?  
 
Thank you in advance for your review and I hope you have a nice holiday weekend! 
 

Melissa Schmit 
Permitting Manager  
7650 Edinborough Way, Suite 725 
Edina, MN 55435 
Main: 952.988.9000 
Direct: 612.259.3095 

Geronimo Energy 
 

 
 
 







From: Roos, Stephan (MDA)
To: Melissa Schmit
Cc: Patton, Bob (MDA)
Subject: Elm Creek Solar Project Discussion
Date: Tuesday, March 5, 2019 12:03:58 PM
Attachments: image001.jpg

Hi Melissa,
We generally find it very useful to have a meeting with companies proposing power projects in
agricultural areas before we provide any formal comments on the project for the PUC’s review
process. There are usually several issues we need to understand and accompanying plans we need
to review prior to comment, such as an Agricultural Impact Mitigation Plan, Environmental
Protection Plan, and issues related to the conversion of prime farmland, among others.
 
We’d be very happy to sit down with you to learn about this project and begin discussions over
issues pointed to above. Please contact me with some alternate days and times that would be
convenient for you and I’ll work something into our schedules and arrange for a meeting space.
 
We look forward to meeting with you and thanks for reaching out to us,
Steve
 
Steve Roos, PLA, ASLA
Environmental Planner
Energy and Environment Section
Agricultural Marketing and Development Division
Minnesota Department of Agriculture
625 Robert Street North
Saint Paul, MN  55155-2538
Ph: 651-201-6631
 

 
                         www.mda.state.mn.us
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